229

BOROUGH COUNCIL OF KING’S LYNN & WEST NORFOLK

COUNCIL

Minutes from the Meeting of the Council held on Thursday, 2nd October,
2025 at 5.00 pm in the Assembly Room, Town Hall, Saturday Market Place,
King's Lynn PE30 5DQ

PRESENT: Councillor A Bullen (Chair)

Councillors B Ayres, T Barclay, S Bearshaw, J Bhondi, P Bland, R Blunt, F Bone,
A Bubb, Mrs J Collingham, S Collop, C J Crofts, M de Whalley, P Devulapalli,
S Everett, J Fry, D Heneghan, P Hodson, H Humphrey, B Jones, C Joyce,

A Kemp, J Kirk, A Lawrence, S Lintern, B Long, J Lowe, A Moore, J Moriarty,
C Morley, S Nash, T Parish, S Ring, C Rose, J Rust, A Ryves, D Sayers,
Mrs V Spikings, S Squire and A Ware

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors B Anota, P Beal, A Beales,
R Coates, R Colwell, T de Winton, A Dickinson, J Osborne, J Ratcliffe, S Sandell,
M Storey and D Tyler

C:57 PRAYERS
Prayers were led by Rev Cannon Ling.

C:58 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Anota, Beal,
Beales, Coates, Colwell, Dickinson, Osborne, Raitcliffe, Sandell,
Storey, Tyler and de Winton.

C:59  MINUTES

RESOLVED: The minutes from the meetings held on 315t July and 18t
September 2025 were agreed as a correct record and signed by the
Chair.

C:60 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of Interest.

C:61 MAYOR'S COMMUNICATIONS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

Click here to view the recording of this item on You Tube.

The Mayor provided detail of a fishing fleet tragedy that had happened
150 years ago and the events that were being held to commemorate
the tragedy taking place locally and in Fife.


https://youtu.be/-WUkY4UdLbk?t=188

C:62

C:63

230

URGENT BUSINESS

There was no Urgent Business.

PETITIONS AND PUBLIC QUESTIONS

Click here to view the recording of this item on You Tube.

The Mayor invited David Bailey to ask his question as set out below:

‘While the Lynnsport Bowls Club embraces and welcomes the
proposed upgrade to Lynnsport incorporating new swimming facilities.
To achieve the current proposals the Bowls Club will need to sacrifice
and reduce their capacity by 60%. The loss of such a high capacity will
have a devastating effect not just on the Lynnsport Club, its members
(especially the vulnerable) but the local bowls community in general.
There are discrepancies in the information and figures being circulated.
Can | ask that these discrepancies are looked at then following this to
allow a review to see if there is still a need for such a desperate
reduction in the bowls capacity?”

Councillor Ring responded to the question appreciating the support of
the upgrade of facilities and stating that the consultation period had
only just concluded and all responses would be assessed and views
carefully considered. Councillor Ring informed Council that proposals
for Lynnsport would be presented to the relevant Panel, Cabinet and
Council in January 2026 for consideration. Councillor Ring commented
that he would be willing to meet with key stakeholders to discuss their
concerns.

By way of a supplementary, Mr David Bailey stated that the current
proposals would negatively impact the NHS and put pressure on
Doctors due to vulnerable people having their regular activities
withdrawn. He also outlined that there were discrepancies in the
Sports Facilities Strategy and asked if the document was fit for
purpose.

Councillor Ring responded by stating that he had confidence in the
supporting information and data from consultants which would be used
in taking the Lynnsport proposals forward. He did not agree with
comments relating to negative impacts on the NHS as the proposals to
be brought forward would benefit the overall health and wellbeing of
residents by increasing provision across the board. Councillor Ring
reminded Council that this was still a work in progress and comments
and feedback from the consultation exercise would be taken into
consideration as appropriate.


https://youtu.be/-WUkY4UdLbk?t=236

C:64

C:65

C:66

231

RECOMMENDATIONS FROM COUNCIL BODIES

Click here to view the recording of this item on You Tube.

CAB75: Playing Pitch and Sports Facilities Strategy Adoption
CAB76: Budget Monitoring Quarter 1 — 2025/2026
CAB79: Changes to the Constitution

Councillor Ring proposed deferral of CAB75: Playing Pitch and Sports
Facilities Strategy Adoption, acknowledging that further consultation
needed to be carried out.

Deferral of the item was seconded by Councillor Rust and agreed by
Council.

RESOLVED: CAB75 — Playing Pitch and Sports Facilities Strategy
Adoption be deferred.

Councillor Ring proposed the remaining recommendations from the
Cabinet Meeting held on 23 September, seconded by Councillor Rust.

RESOLVED: The recommendations from the Cabinet Meeting held on
239 September in relation to the below items were approved by
Council:

CAB76: Budget Monitoring Quarter 1 — 2025/2026
CAB79: Changes to the Constitution

AMENDMENT OF COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEWS TERMS OF
REFERENCE - HILGAY AND BURNHAM MARKET

Click here to view the recording of this item on You Tube.

Councillor Ring proposed the recommendations, seconded by
Councillor Lintern.

RESOLVED: 1. To amend the Terms of Reference for the Community
Governance Review relating to Hilgay Parish.

2. To amend the Terms of Reference for the Community Governance
Review relating to Burnham Market Parish Council.

APPOINTMENTS TO ELECTORAL ARRANGEMENTS COMMITTEE

Click here to view the recording of this item on You Tube.

Councillor Ring, seconded by Councillor Long, proposed Councillor
Beales be appointed as Chair to this Committee.

Councillor Bone, seconded by Councillor Rust, proposed Councillor
Everett be appointed as Vice Chair to this Committee.


https://youtu.be/-WUkY4UdLbk?t=816
https://youtu.be/-WUkY4UdLbk?t=972
https://youtu.be/-WUkY4UdLbk?t=972
https://youtu.be/-WUkY4UdLbk?t=1026

c:67

C:68

232

There were no other nominations to consider.
RESOLVED: That Councillor Beales be appointed Chair and Councillor

Everett be appointed as Vice Chair of the Electoral Arrangements
Committee for the 25-26 Municipal Year.

NOTICE OF MOTION

There were no Notices of Motion.

CABINET MEMBERS REPORTS

Click here to view the recording of this item on You Tube.

Councillor Ring moved the Cabinet Members reports.

Councillor Long referred to the Sports Facilities and Playing Pitch
Strategy and asked Councillor Ring if he agreed that the work of
consultants should be cross checked for inaccuracies and highlighted
concerns that had been raised with him by residents. By way of
response Councillor Ring stated that the report had been
commissioned in 2021 and things had moved on since then, so the
information included should have been updated, but this had not been
the case. He explained that further consultation and liaison with the
relevant bodies would now take place to ensure that the information
included in the strategy was up to date.

Councillor Heneghan referred to the Notice of Motion that she had
previously submitted to Council relating to Gambling Reforms and
asked the Portfolio Holder for an update. Councillor Moriarty provided
an update and read out an update from the lead lobbying authority
which set out Government plans to change the law and provide new
powers to Councils relating to gambling premises and vape shops,
including the potential to introduce cumulative impact policies.
Councillor Moriarty thanked Councillor Heneghan for bringing the
Notice of Motion forward.

Councillor Kemp referred to the Sports Facilities and Playing Pitches
Strategy and asked that consideration be given to keeping a pool in the
current location at St James so that it was more accessible. Councillor
Ring explained that St James was an aging facility and costly to
maintain and alternative locations needed to be considered so that
there was a facility available at all times. Redeveloping the current site
would mean that there would be no pool provision for a number of
years. Councillor Ring highlighted that the swimming club supported
the proposals with the additional facilities that would be available at
Lynnsport and that it was a requirement to have sufficient and regular
access for children.


https://youtu.be/-WUkY4UdLbk?t=1170

233

Councillor Nash asked about the EV vehicle fleet review and
information on the makes, models, term of ownership and projected
mileage of the vehicles along with details of the companies to be used.
Councillor de Whalley explained that this piece of work was ongoing
and demonstration work would provide the information Councillor Nash
had asked for and would be available in due course. Councillor de
Whalley agreed to provide Councillor Nash with details of the
companies that were being used to take this piece of work forward.

Councillor Parish asked for an update on Heacham Beach Huts,
informing Council that there had been a petition and there was no local
appetite for selling these. Councillor Ring stated that an asset
management review was being undertaken to ensure best value for the
tax payer. Given the views of owners and that the beach status was
improving, it had been decided to offer a one year licence to the beach
hut owners whilst the right long term approach was considered.

Councillor Long called for a point of order asking for questions and
answers to be succinct.

Councillor Crofts referred to the Southend Road development at
Hunstanton and comments made by Councillor Rust in her report, and
asked for an update on the conditions attached to the properties.
Councillor Rust stated that there was originally a local connections
condition attached, but this had made it hard for potential purchasers to
get a mortgage and also had implications should the properties be
resold. Councillor Rust agreed to provide an update on progress and
marketing of the properties.

Councillor Heneghan referred to the summer events programme and
asked how King’s Lynn was being promoted beyond the Borough.
Councillor Lintern commented that she was shortly to attend an LGA
Culture and Tourism Conference which would present ideas for wider
marketing and she was also making contact with her counterparts in
other Local Authorities.

Councillor Fry referred to St James and asked what would happen to
the site once the swimming pool had been relocated to Lynnsport.
Councillor Ring explained that the site would be an investment
opportunity.

Councillor Kemp referred to proposals for improvements to the Ferry
and Councillor de Whalley explained that some improvements had
been made to enable the Ferry to reopen and further work was now
being carried out to look at longer term solutions.

Councillor Sayers asked Councillor Rust if she agreed that it was
important to treat all with respect and fairness and Councillor Rust
confirmed that it was.



234

Councillor Long was concerned with proposals to reduce funding
available to the RFCC and asked Councillor Squire for an update.
Councillor Squire confirmed that she too was concerned as there was
likely to be a significant funding shortfall and priority would need to be
given to what could be funded. She explained that this would need to
be raised with Government going forward as residents, homes and
businesses needed to be protected.

Councillor Parish asked Councillor Bland if he would be meeting with
Heacham Parish Council to discuss car parking. Councillor Bland
explained that work was still ongoing to upgrade car parking software,
so there was no update for the Parish Council at this time.

Councillor Crofts asked if there were any plans to reinstate the
Allotment Competition and Councillor de Whalley agreed to look into
this.

Councillor Everett asked Councillor Rust what was being done to
encourage Freebridge Community Housing to turn around void
properties. Councillor Rust shared Councillor Everett’'s concerns but
acknowledged that there were issues and challenges with voids. She
explained that Freebridge Community Housing had indicated that they
were working to improve void levels and had adjusted standards from
Gold to the basic standard with funding being provided to residents to
redecorate themselves.

Councillor Kirk asked if it was time to rethink the Council’s stance on
net zero as it was an expense to residents and unnecessary.
Councillor de Whalley stated that the Greenhouse effect had been
proven and why would we want to risk West Norfolk which was low
lying and coastal and at risk from the effects of climate change. He felt
that Councillor Kirk’'s comments were irresponsible.

In response to a question from Councillor Kemp, Councillor de Whalley
confirmed that village green status for Doorstep Green was being
progressed.

Councillor Ware asked what ‘out of season’ events had been planned
for the area and Councillor Heneghan highlighted Myths and Legends,
Hunstanton Observatory and that she was looking to strengthen the
year round offer in Downham Market and Hunstanton.

Councillor Spikings referred to coastal properties which had a mix of
tenures and asked if there were any plans to extend tenures for the
whole year. Councillor Squire explained that the reason for restrictions
was because of the high risk of winter storms, but acknowledged that
work could be done to bring all tenures in line to ensure consistency.

Councillor Hodson referred to the recommendations made by the
Panels in relation to Heacham Beach Huts and Councillor Ring



235

explained that a range of options would be considered, but noted that a
ten year lease would incur significant additional costs.

Councillor Kemp asked about Dentistry provision and training and
Councillor Rust acknowledged that there was a lack of dental provision,
which was concerning. Discussions had been held with the UEA to
see if collaborative training was an option. It was noted that the local
College did provide some dental training.

Councillor Devulapalli asked that the concerns raised regarding the
Lynnsport proposals and the Sports Facilities and Playing Pitch
Strategy would be taken seriously. Councillor Ring referred Councillor
Devulapalli to his response to the public question answered earlier on
in the meeting.

Councillor Long noted that a social influencer had been brought in to
promote tourism and asked for assurance that they would promote the
right places and ensure that they were promoting sustainable tourism.
Councillor Lintern confirmed that they would be respectful of the
environment.

C:69 MEMBER'S QUESTION TIME

There were no questions.

The meeting closed at 6.23 pm




